


ADDENDUM NO. 3 

 

RFP NO.: RFP-16-HHL-004 

HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS RENTAL HOUSING IN THE VILLAGES OF LAIOPUA 

 

 

INCLUSIONS 

 

This Addendum No. 3 shall incorporate the following amendments to RFP-16-HHL-004: 

 

 

1. Responses to 14 Questions received on March 22, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ADDENDUM 3 

RFP-16-HHL-004 

 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS: 
 
Question #1: 
Offer Form OF-2 Project Outline C. – What is meant by the “House Construction Program”? 
 
 Response:  Offeror shall describe the proposed vertical construction including, but not  
 limited to quantity, design, model type (br/ba), build-out schedule, and cost. 
 
Question #2: 
RFP 3.1 – Once the contract has been awarded can subcontractors be changed? 
 
 Response:  Developer may change sub-contractors, but shall inform DHHL.  All terms 
 and conditions, and requirements of the contract shall apply to sub-contractors and sub-
 consultants.  
 
Question #3: 
RFP requires units to be offered to DHHL’s Undivided Interest list, then DHHL Hawaii 
Islandwide Residential List. 
 

(1) At any time will units be offered to the general public, if the first two 
priorities do not fill the units? 
 
Response: No.  This project offering is only available to qualified native Hawaiians on 
DHHL’s applicable residential waitlist. 

 
(2) Does the narrow tenant pool violate any fair housing rules, or federal/state resource 

 rules? 
 
 Response:   See attached Agenda Item F-2, Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting of 

 September 22, 1998. 
 

Question #4: 
RFP section 3.9 "Additional Information" states that certain forms, such as the HCE compliance 
and Insurance Certificates are to be included in section 3.9. How do we know which additional 
information to provide if it is not requested through the RFP? 
 
 Response:  Offeror may provide current HCE Compliance and Liability Insurance 
 Certificate.  The additional information will be required of the developer at the time of 
 selection.   
 
Question #5: 
The RFP states that the Offeror “shall prepare a rental management process…”  

(1) Do we have to enroll/register renter/tenants into an ongoing program, maintain and track 
their progress until they are ready to buy their home after the initial 15‐year period? 

 
 Response:  Offeror shall determine its renter’s financial management process from rent-
 up to homeownership conversion. 
 



(2) Will DHHL have any involvement or oversight over this process? 
 
Response:  Offeror will be responsible for the implementation of the rental management 
program and to inform DHHL of actions taken with each tenant. 
 

Question #6: 
The RFP states that we have to prepare a management handbook. 

(1) Is this for the renter/tenants with financial education material to assist them in 
purchasing a home. 
 
Response:  Offerors shall outline the contents of a rental management manual, which 
may be referred to as a “Resident Manual”. 
 

(2) Do we have to have a handbook ready to be submitted with the RFP? 
 
Response:  Offeror is not required to submit a Rental Management Handbook or Manual 
with the RFP, but may provide samples of current or past work.  
 

Question #7:  
If we partner with a financial institution to provide financial counseling, services, etc., will they 
be able to offer mortgages to the renter/tenants? 
 
 Response:  Offeror shall determine the financial requirements and who best can address 
 the needs of the tenant through counseling services and take-out financing. 
 
Question #8: 
Regarding the $1,000 per day liquidated damages “will only be applicable to DHHL sources of 
funds for vertical construction”. Is this only for the financing side? 
 
 Response:  Liquidated damages will apply to DHHL sources of funds after a final project 
 schedule is determined at the time of contracting. 
 
Question #9: 
Can we do slab on grade or must it be post and pier construction as noted in the RFP? 
 
 Response:  Vertical construction is subject to the DCCRs and Design Guidelines of the 
 Villages of Laiopua. 
 
Question #10: 
Why are there two 2 bedroom types? What is the difference? 
 
 Response:  Offeror’s house construction program is not limited to any number of model 
 types.  It is up to Offeror’s interpretation of the market and financial feasibility to 
 determine the number of model types, its cost, and financial qualification. 
 
Question #11: 
Is the laundry allowed in a closet with sliding doors on the exterior? We could also use 
architectural screens to hide it if needed. The Design Guideline prohibits it in an exterior 
location except if it is screened from view. 
 
 Response:  Offeror is not required to submit detailed floor plans in response to this RFP. 



 However, Offeror can note intentions or exceptions on any renderings provided, or in the 
 “Conditions” section.  House plans, after contracting needs approval by the Villages of 
 Laiopua Design Review Committee, prior to application for building permit.  
 
Question #12: 
Addendum 1 contains draft documents “Modifications, Rules & Guidelines (printed December 
30, 1997) and Handbook for New Residential Construction (December 1997). Since these 
documents are almost 20 years old and marked as DRAFT, do the builders still have to follow 
these guidelines? 
 
For example, The Handbook requires two committees to review design 
standards for the Villages of Laiopua – New Construction committee (NCC) and Modifications 
Committee (MC) ‐ ‐ are these still applicable under this RFP? Do the SFDR building heights of 
30 feet still applicable? 
 
Are the minimum front and rear setbacks still 15 feet and side yard setbacks of 8 feet still 
required? 
 
 Response to all of Question #12: The documents and design guidelines noted above are 
 currently applicable. 
 
Question #13: 
When we did the site visit at the pre‐RFP meeting, there was a section in Village 4 that was 
fenced off and when we asked about it, we were told it was a “nature preserve” The map does 
not show it – Is that part of an existing lot? If so what is that lot number? 
 
 Response:  There are 118 lots in Village 4 that are available for house construction. 
 Lot 121 (future park) , Lot 108 (Uhiuhi preserve) , and Lot 120 (cluster mail box lot) are 
 not included as a buildable lot.  The fenced “nature preserve” is a plant preserve area 
 that is not part of Village 4.  
 
Question #14: 
In the Addendum under E. Green Building section, the RFP makes reference to an “Exhibit L 
Green Building ” but there is no Exhibit L in the RFP. 
 
 Response:  Offeror shall prepare its own proposed Green Building outline and schedule. 
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